

Executive Board First Regular Session

Rome, 23–26 February 2004

# **Executive Board Bureau**

President:	Mr Miguel Barreto (Peru)
Vice-President:	See decision on page 1, Election of the Bureau of the Executive Board and Appointment of the Rapporteur.
Member:	Mr Nasreddine Rimouche (Algeria)
Member:	Ms Nasrin Akhter (Bangladesh)
Member:	<b>Mr Milan Paksi</b> (Slovakia)
Rapporteur:	Ms Nasrin Akhter (Bangladesh)

DECISIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE FIRST REGULAR SESSION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD, 2004



Distribution: GENERAL WFP/EB.1/2004/13/Rev.1 24 March 2004 ORIGINAL: SPANISH

This document is printed in a limited number of copies. Executive Board documents are available on WFP's WEB site (http://www.wfp.org/eb).

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	Adoption of the Agenda	1
	Election of the Bureau of the Executive Board and Appointment of the Rapporteur	1
CURRENT AND F	UTURE STRATEGIC ISSUES	
2004/EB.1/1	Current and Future Strategic Issues	1
POLICY ISSUES		
2004/EB.1/2	Emergency Needs Assessments	2
2004/EB.1/3	WFP Policy on Staff Recruitment and Geographical Representation of Member States	2
2004/EB.1/4	Humanitarian Principles	2
2004/EB.1/5	WFP Report on Follow-up to General Assembly Resolution A/RES/56/201: Triennial Policy Review of Operational Activities for Development of the United Nations System	2
2004/EB.1/6	Update on WFP's Response to HIV/AIDS	3
2004/EB.1/7	Information Note on WFP's Support for NEPAD	3
RESOURCE, FINA	NCIAL AND BUDGETARY MATTERS	
2004/EB.1/8	Business Process Review: Pilot Financing Paper	3
2004/EB.1/9	Basis for Calculation of Indirect Support Costs (ISC) on Ocean Transport Costs	3
EVALUATION REP	PORTS	
2004/EB.1/10	Summary Report of the Thematic Evaluation of the PRRO Category	4
REPORTS ON OP	ERATIONS—OPERATIONAL MATTERS	
2004/EB.1/11	Information Note on the Special Operations (SO) Programme Category	4
MIDDLE EAST, CENTRAL ASIA AND EASTERN EUROPE REGIONAL PORTFOLIO— OPERATIONAL MATTERS		
2004/EB.1/12	Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Armenia 10053.1	4
MIDDLE EAST, CENTRAL ASIA AND EASTERN EUROPE REGIONAL PORTFOLIO— EVALUATION REPORTS		
2004/EB.1/13	Information Note on the Review of the United Nations Joint Logistics Centre (UNJLC) Operations in Iraq	4
WEST AFRICA RE	GIONAL PORTFOLIO—OPERATIONAL MATTERS	
2004/EB.1/14	Development Project for Executive Board Approval—Benin 10308.0	5
2004/EB.1/15	Development Project for Executive Board Approval— The Gambia 10311.0	5
ASIA REGIONAL PORTFOLIO—OPERATIONAL MATTERS		
2004/EB.1/16	Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Nepal 10058.3	5
2004/EB.1/17	Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Cambodia 10305.0	5



i

2004/EB.1/18	Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Indonesia 10069.1	5
EAST AND CENTR	RAL AFRICA REGIONAL PORTFOLIO—EVALUATION REPORTS	
2004/EB.1/19	Information Note on WFP Assistance to Internally Displaced Persons in the Democratic Republic of Congo	5
EAST AND CENTR	RAL AFRICA REGIONAL PORTFOLIO—OPERATIONAL MATTERS	
2004/EB.1/20	Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Sudan 10122.1	6
2004/EB.1/21	Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Republic of the Congo 10312.0	6
OPERATIONAL M	ATTERS	
2004/EB.1/22	Emergency Operations Approved by the Executive Director or the Executive Director and the Director-General of FAO (1 July–31 December 2003)	6
ORGANIZATIONA	L AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS	
2004/EB.1/23	Biennial Programme of Work of the Executive Board (2004–2005)	6
2004/EB.1/24	Programming Food Aid in Urban Areas: Operational Guidance	6
2004/EB.1/25	Operational Guidelines on the Donation of Foods Derived from Modern Biotechnology	6
2004/EB.1/26	Information Note on WFP's Security Upgrade Programme	7
SUMMARIES OF THE WORK OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD		
2004/EB.1/27	Summary of the Work of the Third Regular Session of the Executive Board, 2003	7
OTHER BUSINESS	8	
2004/EB.1/28	Provisional Report on the Joint Meeting of the Executive Boards of UNDP/UNFPA, UNICEF and WFP	7
2004/EB.1/29	Allowances for the Executive Director	7
Annex I	Agenda	8
Annex II	List of document	10
Annex III	List of participants	13

\_\_\_\_



# **DECISIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS**

#### Adoption of the Agenda

The Executive Board adopted the revised agenda as presented (Annex).

23 February 2004

# Election of the Bureau of the Executive Board and Appointment of the Rapporteur

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the Board, the Executive Board elected Mr Miguel Barreto (Peru, List C) as President for a one-year term.

The Board elected as Vice-President H.E. Poul Skytte Christoffersen (Denmark, List D). The election of the Vice-President would take effect as soon as Denmark was elected as a Board member by ECOSOC.\*

The representatives of: Algeria, Mr Nasreddine Rimouche (List A); Bangladesh, Ms Nasrin Akhter (List B); and Slovakia, Mr Milan Paksi (List E) were elected as members of the Bureau, representing the other three WFP electoral lists for a one-year term.

In accordance with Rule XII of its Rules of Procedure, the Board appointed Ms Nasrin Akhter (List B) Rapporteur of the First Regular Session of 2004.

23 February 2004

The decisions and recommendations in the current report will be implemented by the Secretariat in the light of the Board's deliberations, the main points of which will be reflected in the summary of the work of the session.

# CURRENT AND FUTURE STRATEGIC ISSUES

## 2004/EB.1/1 Current and Future Strategic Issues

The Board took note of the Executive Director's oral presentation on strategic issues facing the Programme. The main points of the presentation, and the Board's comments, would be contained in the summary of the work of the session. The Board also took note of the statement of Mr Ruud Lubbers, United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, on issues of mutual interest to UNHCR and WFP.

23 February 2004

\* Denmark was elected as a Board member by ECOSOC on 27 February 2004



## **POLICY ISSUES**

## 2004/EB.1/2 Emergency Needs Assessments

The Board took note of the information provided in document WFP/EB.1/2004/4-A on strengthening emergency needs assessments. It requested that the Secretariat provide an update on progress made in implementing these measures, along with a proposed implementation plan, including cooperation with other agencies, a timetable and budget implications, at the Third Regular Session in October 2004.

23 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/3 WFP Policy on Staff Recruitment and Geographical Representation of Member States

The Board took note of the information submitted on the methodology used by WFP to establish appropriate geographical and gender representation among international professional staff as set out in document WFP/EB.1/2004/4-B/Rev.1 on policy issues. The Board requested that the opinions expressed during the discussion be taken into account in the context of the HR strategic management review, which the Secretariat would carry out as appropriate.

24 February 2004

#### 2004/EB.1/4 Humanitarian Principles

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/4-C and approved the ten humanitarian principles that would be added to the Consolidated Framework of WFP Policies, taking into account comments made during the debate. The Secretariat was requested to submit to the Board at its next session, through the Bureau, a document for information on the substance of the statement on humanitarian principles.

23 February 2004

### 2004/EB.1/5 WFP Report on Follow-up to General Assembly Resolution A/RES/56/201: Triennial Policy Review of Operational Activities for Development of the United Nations System

The Board took note of the information contained in the document WFP/EB.1/2004/4-D + Corr.1, and requested the Secretariat to play an active role in review of the Triennial Policy Review of Operational Activities for Development of the United Nations System (TCPR). The Board decided that it would continue the discussion on this matter during the Annual Session in May 2004.



#### 2004/EB.1/6 Update on WFP's Response to HIV/AIDS

The Board took note of the information contained in the document WFP/EB.1/2004/4-E, and indicated that it expected to receive in the future a series of updates in which the comments made during the discussion would be taken into account.

24 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/7 Information Note on WFP's Support for NEPAD

The Board took note of the document WFP/EB.1/2004/4-F.

24 February 2004

# **RESOURCE, FINANCIAL AND BUDGETARY MATTERS**

## 2004/EB.1/8 Business Process Review: Pilot Financing Paper

The Board:

- a) took note that the obligation and commitment for the five pilot projects identified in document WFP/EB.1/2004/5-A/1 would commence with the approval of the projects by the Executive Board or jointly by the Executive Director and the Director-General of FAO under their delegated authority; and
- b) approved the use of the Operational Reserve to finance the pilot projects on the basis of forecast contributions as an exception to its decision on the use of the Operational Reserve in WFP/EB.A/97/4-D, and took note of the Executive Director's decision to allow an exception to Financial Rule 110.1 to allow the use of the Operational Reserve for this purpose.

The Board of took note of the comments the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions (ACABQ) (WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/2) FAO Finance Committee and the (WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/3).

24 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/9 Basis for Calculation of Indirect Support Costs (ISC) on Ocean Transport Costs

Further to the recommendation of the External Auditor, the Board approved, on an exceptional basis, the exceptional measure adopted by the Executive Director to exclude the cargo preference premiums for ocean transport from the United States contributions consistent with the agreement reached on 30 October 2001 between the United States government and WFP, as described in document WFP/EB.1/2004/5-B/1. This approval is limited to the biennium ending 31 December 2003, and does not constitute a precedent for WFP's future treatment of donor contributions.



The Board stressed that this decision should not prejudge the outcome of any future discussion on the subject. In this regard, it invited the Secretariat to hold an informal consultation on the treatment of contributions.

The Board took note of the comments of the ACABO (WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/2) FAO Finance Committee and the (WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/3).

26 February 2004

### **EVALUATION REPORTS**

## 2004/EB.1/10 Summary Report of the Thematic Evaluation of the PRRO Category

The Board took note of the recommendations contained in the evaluation report WFP/EB.1/2004/6-A and of the interim management response set out in the annex. At its Annual Session in 2004, the Board would begin the examination of the final version of the measures taken by management, at which time it would take a decision on a process to be followed.

25 February 2004

## **REPORTS ON OPERATIONS—OPERATIONAL MATTERS**

#### 2004/EB.1/11 Information Note on the Special Operations (SO) Programme Category

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/7 and indicated that it would re-examine this topic at its Annual Session in May 2004.

24 February 2004

# MIDDLE EAST, CENTRAL ASIA AND EASTERN EUROPE REGIONAL PORTFOLIO— OPERATIONAL MATTERS

2004/EB.1/12 Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Armenia 10053.1

The Board approved Armenia PRRO 10053.1,"Relief andRecoveryAssistance forVulnerable(WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/4 + Corr.1 and Corr.2).Groups"

25 February 2004

## MIDDLE EAST, CENTRAL ASIA AND EASTERN EUROPE REGIONAL PORTFOLIO— EVALUATION REPORTS

2004/EB.1/13 Information Note on the Review of the United Nations Joint Logistics Centre (UNJLC) Operations in Iraq

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/6-B/1.



### WEST AFRICA REGIONAL PORTFOLIO—OPERATIONAL MATTERS

# 2004/EB.1/14 Development Project for Executive Board Approval—Benin 10308.0

The Board approved development project Benin 10308.0, "Promotion of Formal and Non-Formal Education of Children and Youth" (WFP/EB.1/2004/8-A/2).

25 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/15 Development Project for Executive Board Approval— The Gambia 10311.0

The Board approved development project The Gambia 10311.0, "Support to Basic Education in Rural Vulnerable Regions" (WFP/EB.1/2004/8-A/1).

25 February 2004

### ASIA REGIONAL PORTFOLIO—OPERATIONAL MATTERS

2004/EB.1/16 Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Nepal 10058.3

The Board approved Nepal PRRO 10058.3, "Food Assistance to Bhutanese Refugees in Nepal" (WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/2).

25 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/17 Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Cambodia 10305.0

The Board approved Cambodia PRRO 10305.0, "Assisting People in Crisis" (WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/1).

25 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/18 Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Indonesia 10069.1

The Board approved Indonesia PRRO 10069.1, "Assistance to Recovery and Nutritional Rehabilitation" (WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/3).

25 February 2004

## EAST AND CENTRAL AFRICA REGIONAL PORTFOLIO—EVALUATION REPORTS

2004/EB.1/19 Information Note on WFP Assistance to Internally Displaced Persons in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/6-B/2.



# EAST AND CENTRAL AFRICA REGIONAL PORTFOLIO—OPERATIONAL MATTERS

# 2004/EB.1/20 Protracted Relief and Recovery Operations for Executive Board Approval—Sudan 10122.1

The Board approved Sudan PRRO 10122.1, "Food Assistance for Eritrean Refugees" (WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/5).

25 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/21 Protracted Relief and Recovery Operation for Executive Board Approval—Republic of the Congo 10312.0

The Board approved PRRO Republic of the Congo 10312.0, "Assistance to Populations Affected by Conflicts" (WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/6).

25 February 2004

# **OPERATIONAL MATTERS**

2004/EB.1/22 Emergency Operations Approved by the Executive Director or the Executive Director and the Director-General of FAO (1 July–31 December 2003)

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/9.

26 February 2004

# **ORGANIZATIONAL AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS**

## 2004/EB.1/23 Biennial Programme of Work of the Executive Board (2004–2005)

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/10-A.

26 February 2004

## 2004/EB.1/24 Programming Food Aid in Urban Areas: Operational Guidance

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/10-B.

26 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/25 Operational Guidelines on the Donation of Foods Derived from Modern Biotechnology

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/10-C.



## 2004/EB.1/26 Information Note on WFP's Security Upgrade Programme

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/10-D and looked forward to the Secretariat's next progress report on this topic at the Annual Session of the Board in May 2004.

24 February 2004

## SUMMARIES OF THE WORK OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

2004/EB.1/27 Summary of the Work of the Third Regular Session of the Executive Board, 2003

The Board endorsed the draft summary of its Third Regular Session of 2003, the final version of which would be contained in document WFP/EB.3/2003/14.

26 February 2004

## **OTHER BUSINESS**

# 2004/EB.1/28 Provisional Report on the Joint Meeting of the Executive Boards of UNDP/UNFPA, UNICEF and WFP

The Board took note of the information contained in document WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/6.

26 February 2004

# 2004/EB.1/29 Allowances for the Executive Director

Further to its decision 2002/EB.A/18 on the housing allowance of the Executive Director, the Board reviewed the level of the representation allowance of the Executive Director and decided that it would be set at US\$50,000 per year, thus bringing it into line with the allowances currently paid to the Director-General of FAO and to the President of IFAD.



# **ANNEX I**

# AGENDA

- 1. Adoption of the Agenda
- 2. Election of the Bureau and appointment of the Rapporteur
- 3. Current and future strategic issues

# 4. Policy issues

- a) <u>Emergency needs assessments</u>
- b) WFP policy on staff recruitment and geographical representation of Member States
- c) <u>Humanitarian principles</u>
- d) <u>WFP report on follow-up to General Assembly resolution A/RES/56/201: Triennial</u> <u>Policy Review of Operational Activities for Development of the United Nations</u> <u>System</u>
- e) <u>Update on WFP's response to HIV/AIDS\*</u>
- f) Information note on WFP's support for NEPAD\*
- 5. Resource, financial and budgetary matters
  - a) Business process review (BPR): pilot financing paper
  - b) Basis for calculation of indirect support costs (ISC) on ocean transport costs
- 6. Evaluation reports
  - a) <u>Summary report of the thematic evaluation of the protracted relief and recovery</u> <u>operations (PRRO) category</u>
  - b) <u>Information note on the review of the United Nations Joint Logistics Centre</u> (UNJLC) operations in Iraq\*

 <u>Information note on WFP assistance to internally displaced persons in the</u> <u>Democratic Republic of the Congo (DRC)\*</u>

# **Operational matters**

7. Reports on operations

Information note on the special operations (SO) programme category\*

# 8. Projects for Executive Board approval

- a) <u>Development projects</u>
  - ➢ Benin 10308.0
  - ➤ The Gambia 10311.0
- b) Protracted relief and recovery operations
  - ➢ Armenia 10053.1
  - Cambodia 10305.0
  - ➢ Indonesia 10069.1
  - Nepal 10058.3



- Republic of the Congo 10312.0
- Sudan 10122.1
- 9. Reports of the Executive Director on operational matters (1 July-31 December 2003) <u>Emergency operations approved by the Executive Director or the Executive Director</u> and the Director-General of FAO\*
- 10. Organizational and procedural matters
  - a) Biennial Programme of Work of the Executive Board (2004–2005)\*
  - b) Programming food aid in urban areas: operational guidance\*
  - c) Operational guidelines on the donation of foods derived from modern biotechnology\*
  - d) Information note on WFP's security upgrade programme
- 11. Summary of the work of the Third Regular Session of the Executive Board, 2003
- 12. Other business
- 13. Verification of adopted decisions and recommendations



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>\*</sup> In accordance with the Executive Board's decisions on governance, approved at the Annual and Third Regular Sessions, 2000, items for information should not be discussed unless a Board member specifically requests it, well in advance of the meeting, and the Chair accepts the request on the grounds that it is a proper use of the Board's time.

# ANNEX II

# LIST OF DOCUMENTS

\_\_\_\_\_

Provisional agenda item	Title of agenda item and document	Document symbol
1	Provisional agenda	WFP/EB.1/2004/1/1/Rev.1
	Annotated provisional agenda	WFP/EB.1/2004/1/2
	Policy issues	
4 a)	Emergency needs assessments	WFP/EB.1/2004/4-A
4 b)	WFP policy on staff recruitment and geographical representation of Member States	WFP/EB.1/2004/4-B/Rev.1
4 c)	Humanitarian principles	WFP/EB.1/2004/4-C
4 d)	WFP report on follow-up to General Assembly Resolution A/56/201: Triennial policy review of operational activities for development of the United Nations system	WFP/EB.1/2004/4-D + Corr.1
4 e)	Update on WFP's response to HIV/AIDS	WFP/EB.1/2004/4-E
4 f)	Information note on WFP's support for NEPAD	WFP/EB.1/2004/4-F
	Resource, financial and budgetary matters	
5 a)	Business process review: pilot financing paper	WFP/EB.1/2004/5-A/1
	Report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions (ACABQ)	WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/2
	Report of the FAO Finance Committee	WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/3
5 b)	Basis for calculation of indirect support costs (ISC) on ocean transport costs	WFP/EB.1/2004/5/B/1
	Report of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions (ACABQ)	WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/2
	Report of the FAO Finance Committee	WFP/EB.1/2004/5(A,B)/3
	Evaluation reports	



Provisional agenda item	Title of agenda item and document	Document symbol
6 a)	Summary report of the thematic evaluation of the protracted relief and recovery operation (PRRO) category	WFP/EB.1/2004/6-A
6 b)	Information note on the review of UNJLC operations in Iraq	WFP/EB.1/2004/6-B/1
	Information note on WFP assistance to internally displaced persons in the Democratic Republic of the Congo	WFP/EB.1/2004/6-B/2
	Reports on operations	
7	Information note on the special operations programme category	WFP/EB.1/2004/7
	Projects for Executive Board approval	
8 a)	Development projects	
	Gambia 10311.0	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-A/1
	Benin 10308.0	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-A/2
8 b)	Protracted relief and recovery operations	
	Cambodia 10305.0	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/1
	Nepal 10058.3	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/2
	Indonesia 10069.1	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/3
	Armenia 10053.1	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/4 + Corr.1 + Corr.2
	Sudan 10122.1	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/5
	Republic of the Congo 10312.0	WFP/EB.1/2004/8-B/6
	Report of the Executive Director on operational matters (1 July–31 December 2003)	
9	Emergency operations approved by the Executive Director or the Executive Director and the Director-General of FAO (1 July–31 December 2003)	WFP/EB.1/2004/9
	Organizational and procedural matters	
10 a)	Biennial programme of work of the Executive Board (2004–2005)	WFP/EB.1/2004/10-A
10 b)	Programming food aid in urban areas: operational guidance	WFP/EB.1/2004/10-B



Provisional agenda item	Title of agenda item and document	Document symbol
10 c)	Operational guidelines on the donation of foods derived from modern biotechnology	WFP/EB.1/2004/10-C
10 d)	Information note on WFP's security upgrade programme	WFP/EB.1/2004/10-D
	Verification of adopted decisions and recommendations	
13	Decisions and recommendations of the First Regular Session of the Executive Board, 2004	WFP/EB.1/2004/13/Rev.1
	Summary of the work of the First Regular Session of the Executive Board, 2004	WFP/EB.1/2004/14*
	Information notes	
	Information for participants	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/1
	Provisional timetable	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/2/Rev.1
	Work Plan for the WFP Executive Board First Regular Session, 2004	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/2/Add.1
	Provisional list of documents	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/3/Rev.1
	Provisional list of participants	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/4/Rev.2
	Report of the Executive Director on senior staff movements (1 October 2003–31 January 2004)	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/5
	Provisional Report of the joint meeting of the Executive Boards of UNDP/UNFPA, UNICEF and WFP	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/6
	Streamlining Board documentation	WFP/EB.1/2004/INF/7

\_\_\_\_\_

 $\ast$  To be issued after endorsement by the Executive Board at its next session.



# ANNEX III

# LIST OF PARTICIPANTS (AS OF 26 FEBRUARY 2004)

# Members of the Executive Board

Algeria:	Mr. N. Rimouche; Mr. M. Mellah
Angola:	Mr. S. Neto; Mr. K.K. Mateva; Mr. C.A. Amaral
Australia:	H.E. M.A. Cobban; Ms. K. Sandercock; Ms. D. Wheeler
Bangladesh:	H.E. A.B. Chowdhury; Ms. N. Akhter; Ms. N. Sobhan
Belgium:	H.E. C. Monnoyer; Mr. A. Renard; Mr. B. De Schrevel
Cameroon:	H.E. M. Tabong Kima; Mr. M. Moungui
Canada:	Mr. M.G. Pilote; Mr. C. Parker
China:	H.E. Ma S.; Ms. Wang W.; Ms. Li Y.; Mr. Xu Y.
Cuba:	H.E. A. Puig; Ms. D. Rodríguez Parra; Mr. A. Castañon Pérez
El Salvador:	H.E. J. Rodezno Munguía; Ms. M.E. Jiménez de Mochi Onori
Eritrea:	Mr. Y. Tensue
Finland:	Ms. H. Pihlatie; H.E. M. Isoaro; Ms. K. Karttunen
Germany:	H.E. G.F. Von Schenck; Mr. B. Dunnzlaff; Ms. U.J. Pulheim;
Greece:	Mr. E. Manoussakis; Mr. E-S. Andrikopoulos
Haiti:	H.E. R. Pérodin; Mr. P. Saint-Hilaire
India:	H.E. H. Som; Mr. G. Nair
Indonesia:	Mr. D. Riyadi; Mr. B. Endah.; Mr. S. Sinaga
Iran, Islamic Republic of:	H.E. M.S. Noori-Naeini; Mr. M. Hajikazemi
Iraq:	
Japan:	Mr. F. Kabuta
Libyan Arab Jamahiriya:	Mr. S. Al-Deen Sasi Issa
Malawi:	Mr. L. Chikuni
Mauritania:	Mr. M.L. Ould Guig; H.E. H. Ould Ely; Mr. M.A.Ould El Ghaouth; Mr. Ould Abidine Sidy; Mr. A. Ould Sbai
Mexico:	Mr. V.H. Morales Meléndez



Netherlands:	H.E. E. Wermuth; Mr. J. Steeghs; Ms. M. Van Kesteren; Ms. A. Swalef
Norway:	Ms. M.K. Wilhelmsen; Ms. M. Slettevold; Mr. B. Immoren
Pakistan:	H.E. M.Q. Beg
Peru:	H.E. J.P. Morán Val; Mr. R. Seminario; Mr. P. Rubín; Mr. M. Barreto
Poland:	H.E. R. Szuniewicz
Russian Federation:	Mr. A.G. Smirnov; Mr. N.I. Rubtsov; Mr. A.A. Titarenko
Senegal:	Mr. M.B. Ly; Mr. B. Diabong; Mr. A. Wélé
Slovakia:	Mr. M. Paksi
Sweden:	Mr. M. Odevall; Mr. M. Åberg; Ms. N. O'Dowd Nyman
Syrian Arab Republic:	Ms. A. Jarf; Mr. M. Adi
United Kingdom:	H.E. A. Beattie; Mr. M. Ellis; Mr. N.Briscoe; Ms. E. Buratti
United States of America:	H.E. T.P. Hall; Ms. L. Landis; Mr. W. Brakel; Mr. T. Lavelle; Mr. M. Finberg; Mr. J. Thompson; Ms. S.B. Kotok; Ms. A. Menghitti; Mr. P. Lamade; Mr. J. Brooks

\_\_\_\_\_

# **Observer States**

Afghanistan:	Mr. A.R. Ayazi
Albania:	Ms. V. Cara
Armenia:	H.E. Z.V. Malek
Austria:	Ms. N. Feistritzer
Azerbaijan:	Mr. A. Abbasov
Bolivia:	H.E. M. Paz Estenssoro; Ms. R. Liebers de Baldivieso
Brazil:	Mr. A. De Baena Fernandes
Bulgaria:	H.E. I. Krastelnikov
Burkina Faso:	H.E. M. Sissoko; Mr. B. Cisse
Cape Verde:	Mr. A. Delgado
Chile:	H.E. J. Goñi Carrasco; Mr. G. Ayares
Colombia:	Mr. D.A. Bonilla Giraldo; Mr. J.C. Sanchez Franco; Ms. P. Tolosa Acevedo



Congo, Democratic Republic of the:	Mr. I.M. Mandende
Congo, Republic of the:	Mr. M. Elenga Ekobo; Mr. L. Ngampio; Mr. R.G. Ambero; Mr. E. Essema
Costa Rica:	H.E. V.G. Alvarado de Hernández; Ms. Y. Gago
Côte d'Ivoire:	H.E. R.G. Zady; Mr. A. Bakayoko; Mr. L.L. Ballou
Croatia:	Mr. V. Matijašić; Ms. Z. Penić-Ivanko
Cyprus:	Mr. G. Odysseos
Czech Republic:	Mr. P. Škoda
Democratic People's Republic of Korea:	Mr. Yun S.C.; Mr. Ri Y.H.
Denmark:	H.E. P.S. Christoffersen; Mr. K. Højersholt; Ms. K. Rasmussen
Dominican Republic:	H.E. M. Arvelo Caamaño
Ecuador:	H.E. E. Izquierdo Miño; Ms. P. Borja
Egypt:	Ms. M.A.M. Mousa; Mr. W.A.B. El-Naggar
Ethiopia:	H.E. M. Hulluka
France:	H.E. C. Million; Ms. M-P. Fontaine; Mr. N. Perrin
Gabon:	Mr. L. Charicauth
Guatemala:	Ms. I. Rivera de Angotti
Holy See:	Msgr. R. Volante; Mr. V. Buonomo; Mr. L. Bernardi; Mr. G. Tedesco
Honduras:	H.E. O.A. Oyela Castellón
Hungary:	Mr. Z. Kálmán
Ireland:	H.E. J.F. Cogan; Mr. A. Devlin
Italy:	Mr. F. Cantone; Ms. B. Marondoli
Kuwait:	Ms. L.A. Al Saqqaf
Lesotho:	Mr. M.S. Shale
Luxembourg:	H.E. J. Faltz; Mr. F. Biever
Madagascar:	H.E. A.R. Paraina; Mr. Monja
Malaysia:	H.E. L. Zachariah; Mr. M.N.B. Hj. M. Sidek
Mali;	H.E. I.B. Daga



Malta:	Mr. P. Hili
Mauritius:	Mr. D. Cangy
Morocco:	Mr. A. Faouzi
Mozambique:	Ms. C.E. Mucavi
Myanmar:	H.E. U K.M. Aye; Mr. U A. Myint
Namibia:	Mr. P.W. Misika
New Zealand:	Ms. T. Babington
Nicaragua:	H.E. J. Cuadra Chamorro; Ms. A. Silva Cabrera
Niger:	Mr. A.M. Zakariaou
Panama:	Mr. H. Maltez
Portugal:	Mr. J.M.F.B. Lomelino de Freitas
Qatar:	H.E. A.F. Al Hajri; Mr. S.M.Y.J. Al-Thani; Mr. A. Hatoor
Republic of Korea:	Mr. Han K-Y.; Mr. Lee W-J.
Romania:	Ms. G. Dumitriu
San Marino:	Ms. D. Rotondaro
Saudi Arabia:	Mr. B. Al-Shalhoob
South Africa:	H.E. L.M. Shope; Ms. C.A. Du Toit; Mr. V. Zazeraj; Ms. M. Mohapi
Spain:	Mr. F. Martínez Arroyo
Sri Lanka:	Mr. S. Maringa
Sudan:	Mr. M.S.M.A. Harbi; Mr. S.E. Mahmoud
Switzerland:	Mr. P. Steffen; Mr. A. Ghélew; Mr. L. Caviezel
Thailand:	Ms. K. Ratnaakomut
The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	H.E. I. Angelov
Tunisia:	Ms. S. Seltene
Turkey:	Ms. S. Özcoşkun
Zimbabwe:	Ms. R.G. Manyarara



DECSEB12004-5039E

# Other observers

Commission of the European Community:	Mr. M. Arrion; Ms. C. Hebberecht; Mr. J. de la Caballeria; Ms. A.Garcia-Thärn; Ms. V. Janssen; Ms. C. Just; Ms. M. Coutsouradis
International Committee of the Red Cross	Mr. O. Coutau

# Other entities

Boston Consulting Group:	Mr. M. Manetti: Mr. E. Santarelli
Sovereign Order of Malta:	H.E. Prince G. Bonanno di Linguaglossa; Ms. C.Forthomme

# United Nations Specialized Agencies and its Organizations

FAO:	Ms. A.M. Bauer; Mr. H. Tsuji; Ms. L. Sciannimonaco; Mr. L. Sacks
UNESCO:	Ms. A. Bouya-Aka-Blet
UNHCR:	Mr. R. Lubbers; Mr. W. Irving; Mr. B. Wegter; Ms. M. Manca di Nissa

# Observers from non-governmental organizations